# Oracle®Retail Merchandising Cloud Services

Release Readiness Guide





OracleRetail Merchandising Cloud Services Release Readiness Guide, Release 25.1.401.0

G44908-01

Copyright © 2025, Oracle and/or its affiliates.

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this is software, software documentation, data (as defined in the Federal Acquisition Regulation), or related documentation that is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs (including any operating system, integrated software, any programs embedded, installed, or activated on delivered hardware, and modifications of such programs) and Oracle computer documentation or other Oracle data delivered to or accessed by U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software," "commercial computer software documentation," or "limited rights data" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, the use, reproduction, duplication, release, display, disclosure, modification, preparation of derivative works, and/or adaptation of i) Oracle programs (including any operating system, integrated software, any programs embedded, installed, or activated on delivered hardware, and modifications of such programs), ii) Oracle computer documentation and/or iii) other Oracle data, is subject to the rights and limitations specified in the license contained in the applicable contract. The terms governing the U.S. Government's use of Oracle cloud services are defined by the applicable contract for such services. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle®, Java, MySQL, and NetSuite are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Inside are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Epyc, and the AMD logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information about content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services unless otherwise set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services, except as set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle.

# Contents

### 1 Feature Summary

Noteworthy Enhancements	1
ReST Service for Allocation Upload	2
Ability to Hold Credit Note Posting until Matched or Manually Released	2
ReST Service for GL Cross Reference Maintenance	3
External Account Validation	3
Al-Assisted Capability to Refine Comments	3
Carton Level Stock Order Reconciliation through Induction	3
Off Invoice and Allowance Deals Enhancements – Retroactive Deals	3
Deals Usability and Processing Enhancements	4
Codes	5
DAS/RDS Updates	5
Ability to Create Up-Charges To/From Non-Stockholding Stores	6
Spreadsheet Based Upload for Inventory Adjustments	6
Privileges	6
Codes	6
Privileges	7
Duties	7
DAS/RDS Updates	7
Ability to Define Shrinkage at Class and Subclass Level	7
System Options	8
Integration	8
Codes	8
DAS/RDS Updates	9
Enhanced UDA Cascade Workflow from Parent to Child Items	9
Inventory Ownership Change for Transfers	9
System Options	10
Integration	10
DAS/RDS Updates	10
Enhanced Archive and Truncate Process for Purge History Tables	11
System Options	13
Batch Schedule	13
DAS/RDS Updates	14

	14
Enhanced Processing of Inventory Transactions During Nightly Batch Window	15
Batch Schedule	16
DAS/RDS Updates	17
Improved Inventory (ITEM_LOC_SOH table) Update Process	18
Ability to Cancel Order Line with Open Shipments	18
System Options	19
RFMCS – Enhanced Transfer Workflow to Account for Transfer Returns	19
RFMCS – Enhanced GL Cross Reference Mapping to Add Locations	19
System Requirements	
	1
System Requirements  Browser Requirements  Noteworthy Resolved Issues	
Browser Requirements	1
Browser Requirements	1

### **Preface**

This guide outlines the information you need to know about Oracle Retail Merchandising Foundation Cloud Services new or improved functionality in this update, and describes any tasks you might need to perform for the update. Each section includes a brief description of the feature, the steps you need to take to enable or begin using the feature, any tips or considerations that you should keep in mind, and the resources available to help you.

#### **Audience**

This document is intended for the users and administrators of the Oracle Retail Merchandising Foundation Cloud Services.

#### **Documentation Accessibility**

For information about Oracle's commitment to accessibility, visit the Oracle Accessibility Program website at <a href="http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=docacc">http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=docacc</a>

#### **Access to Oracle Support**

Oracle customers that have purchased support have access to electronic support through My Oracle Support. For information, visit <a href="http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=info">http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=info</a> or visit <a href="http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=trs">http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=trs</a> if you are hearing impaired.

#### **Customer Support**

To contact Oracle Customer Support, access My Oracle Support at the following URL:

#### https://support.oracle.com

When contacting Customer Support, please provide the following:

- Product version and program/module name
- Functional and technical description of the problem (include business impact)
- Detailed step-by-step instructions to re-create
- Exact error message received
- Screen shots of each step you take

#### Oracle Help Center (docs.oracle.com)

Oracle Retail Product documentation is available on the following website <a href="https://docs.oracle.com/en/industries/retail/html">https://docs.oracle.com/en/industries/retail/html</a>

#### **Comments and Suggestions**

Please give us feedback about Oracle Retail Help and Guides. You can send an e-mail to: retail-doc\_us@oracle.com

#### **Oracle Retail Cloud Services and Business Agility**

Oracle Retail Merchandising Foundation Cloud Services is hosted in the Oracle Cloud with the security features inherent to Oracle technology and a robust data center classification, providing significant uptime. The Oracle Cloud team is responsible for installing, monitoring, patching, and upgrading retail software.



Included in the service is continuous technical support, access to software feature enhancements, hardware upgrades, and disaster recovery. The Cloud Service model helps to free customer IT resources from the need to perform these tasks, giving retailers greater business agility to respond to changing technologies and to perform more value-added tasks focused on business processes and innovation.

Oracle Retail Software Cloud Service is acquired exclusively through a subscription service (SaaS) model. This shifts funding from a capital investment in software to an operational expense. Subscription-based pricing for retail applications offers flexibility and cost effectiveness.

# **Feature Summary**

This chapter describes the feature enhancements in this release.

### **Noteworthy Enhancements**

This guide outlines the information you need to know about new or improved functionality in the Oracle Retail Merchandising Cloud Services update and describes any tasks you might need to perform for the update. Each section includes a brief description of the feature, the steps you need to take to enable or begin using the feature, any tips or considerations that you should keep in mind, and the resources available to help you.

#### **Column Definitions**

- Feature: Provides a description of the feature being delivered.
- Module Impacted: Identifies the module associated with the feature, if any.
- Scale: Identifies the size of the feature. Options are:
  - Small: These UI or process-based features are typically comprised of minor field, validation, or program changes. Therefore, the potential impact to users is minimal.
  - Medium: These UI or process-based features are typically comprised of field,
     validation, or program changes. Therefore the potential impact on users is moderate.
  - Large: These UI or process-based features have more complex designs. Therefore, the potential impact to users is higher.
- **Delivered:** Is the new feature available for use immediately after upgrade or must the feature be enabled or configured? If no, the feature is non-disruptive to end users and action is required (detailed steps below) to make the feature ready to use.
- **Customer Action Required:** You must take action before these features can be used. These features are delivered disabled and you choose if and when to enable them.

Feature	Module Impacted	Scale	Delivered Enabled	Customer Action Required?
ReST Service for Allocation Upload	Allocation	Small	Yes	No
Ability to Hold Credit Note Posting until Matched or Manually Released	Invoice Matching	Small	Yes	No
ReST Service for GL Cross Reference Maintenance	Invoice Matching	Small	Yes	No
External Account Validation	Invoice Matching	Small	Yes	No
Al-Assisted Capability to Refine Comments	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No
Carton Level Stock Order Reconciliation through Induction	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No



Feature	Module Impacted	Scale	Delivered Enabled	Customer Action Required?
Off Invoice and Allowance Deals Enhancements – Retroactive Deals	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No
Deals Usability and Processing Enhancements	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No
Ability to Create Up-Charges To/ From Non-Stockholding Stores	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No
Spreadsheet Based Upload for Inventory Adjustments	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No
Ability to Define Shrinkage at Class and Subclass Level	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No
Enhanced UDA Cascade Workflow from Parent to Child Items	Merchandising	Small	Yes	No
Inventory Ownership Change for Transfers	Merchandising	Medium	No	Yes
Enhanced Archive and Truncate Process for Purge History Tables	Merchandising	Medium	No	Yes
Enhanced Availability of Inventory Transaction Related APIs	Merchandising	Medium	Yes	No
Enhanced Processing of Inventory Transactions During Nightly Batch Window	Merchandising	Medium	Yes	No
Improved Inventory (ITEM_LOC_SOH table) Update Process	Merchandising	Medium	Yes	No
Ability to Cancel Order Line with Open Shipments	Merchandising	Small	No	Yes
RFMCS – Enhanced Transfer Workflow to Account for Transfer Returns	RFMCS	Small	Yes	No
RFMCS – Enhanced GL Cross Reference Mapping to Add Locations	RFMCS	Small	Yes	No

### **ReST Service for Allocation Upload**

This cloud service update introduces a ReST service to upload allocations within Allocation CS. This service closely mirrors the Allocation screens for field definitions and validations. It is expected to be used in business setup, where an external system is responsible for creating the initial version of an allocation, which is expected to be further enriched by the end user through online screens once it passes the basic validations associated with the workflow and gets successfully loaded into the database. This service, however, will not allow the creation of 'What if' or 'Scheduled' allocations.

### Ability to Hold Credit Note Posting until Matched or Manually Released



This cloud service update introduces an enhanced supplier option 'Document Hold' which allows greater flexibility in managing credit note postings. With this enhancement, users can select from three options — 'Do Not Hold', 'Hold Invoices until Credit Note is Received', and the new 'Hold Credit Notes' in the Supplier Options screen. The new 'Hold Credit Notes' option allows credit notes to be matched before posting without requiring the associated invoice to be held, thereby improving process efficiency and offering more control over the document flow to the end user. This change streamlines reconciliation processes for retailers and better aligns the system behavior with various operational preferences while maintaining secure and auditable handling of credit notes and related documents.

#### ReST Service for GL Cross Reference Maintenance

This cloud service update introduces a ReST service designed for importing General Ledger (GL) cross-reference mappings in bulk into Invoice Matching Cloud Service. This service closely mirrors the existing screen-driven cross-reference creation process, offering support for all relevant fields and validations including account type, account code, set of books, tax codes and up to twenty segment values as defined for each set of books. Designed to streamline and automate the management and integration of GL mappings, this new service allows users to efficiently handle large-scale updates, ensures compliance with existing validation rules, and supports enterprise integration needs without impacting current data or manual processes.

#### **External Account Validation**

This cloud service update introduces a dedicated system option for external account validation within Invoice Matching Cloud Service, allowing organizations to configure whether account combinations should be validated locally or through integration with an external financial system similar to Oracle Fusion General Ledger. This enhancement provides the flexibility to validate accounts either against an internal repository or by calling external endpoints (with support for both RFI and direct CFIN integration), based on a system level configuration. With streamlined credential management and compatibility with enterprise security practices, the new design improves controls over account validation during GL cross-reference setup, reduces errors and enhances overall compliance with financial governance policies.

### Al-Assisted Capability to Refine Comments

This cloud service update introduces the ability to refine user-entered comments with the help of generative AI. Merchandising online screens for Purchase Orders, Transfers, Items and Deals now provide an option where users can choose to expand, fix grammar, rephrase or summarize their comments with AI assistance. They can provide their own instructions for refinement as well.

### Carton Level Stock Order Reconciliation through Induction

This cloud service update extends the current spreadsheet-based management of stock order reconciliations to support carton-level reconciliations such as the Merchandising online screen. It supports all the fields and validations that are available on screen and has been added as a new worksheet in the existing Stock Order Reconciliation spreadsheet template.

### Off Invoice and Allowance Deals Enhancements – Retroactive Deals



This cloud service update provides the ability to edit Off Invoice and Allowance deals at extended points in their life cycle (worksheet, approved, active). The update capability allows for changing dates (including backdating) as well as changes to components, item-locations, and discount details. The editing capability is not available for PO-specific deals, where there is a dependency on keeping the purchase order and deal in sync.

The updated deal definition is re-applied on all applicable orders and the net cost variance for each item on the POs impacted by the deal update is recorded via transaction data posting. The impacted orders and shipments reflect the new cost based on the updated deal definition, and the inventory associated with these shipments is revalued to account for the deal cost adjustment. In the case of shipments that are already matched, an additional collection document is generated to account for the cost variance arising from the deal updates, given that these documents are not likely to be matched again.

For deals, the option to revalue inventory is always selected by default. If Inventory Layers are being tracked, it will be leveraged to identify where the inventory associated with the deal-impacted POs reside, and the average cost will be revalued based on the number of units of "deal-eligible" inventory available at each location. If Inventory Layers are not used, the cost correction is recorded at the deal location.

### Deals Usability and Processing Enhancements

This cloud service update delivers the following usability and processing-related enhancements for Deals.

- Deal Definition at a Supplier Site Level This enhancement allows deals to be created at a
  Supplier Site level to supplement the current capability of creating deals at a supplier level.
  The deal processing and billing calculations are augmented to support this flexibility. Deals
  defined at the supplier level are applicable to all sites for that supplier.
- Deal Qualification Comparison Date This enhancement provides flexibility to select which date on a purchase order (Original Approval date, Not Before Date, Not After Date, Earliest Ship Date, Latest Ship Date) should be used as the qualifying date for deal applicability for off invoice deals. In previous versions of Merchandising, the eligibility of orders for off invoice deal application was determined based on whether the Not Before Date of the order falls within the deal window (that is, between the deal active date and close date). If the date specified on the deal for this comparison does not exist on the order, the order is not considered for deal application.
- Discount Apportionment The discount apportionment logic for the 'Buy Get' type of deals
  has been enhanced to use Discount Apportionment Percentage (if defined) for deals with a
  Get type of 'Percent off Get Units at % Off Cost' or 'Amount Get Units at Amount Off
  Cost'. If the Discount Apportionment Percentage is not defined, the apportionment is based
  on the relative values of the buy/get items. Definition of the Discount Apportionment
  Percentage is not allowed for deals with a Get type of 'Fixed Amount Get Units for Fixed
  Price'.
- Deal Comments Users can now update Comments at the Deal Component level irrespective of the Deal Status.



### Codes

Code Type	Code Type Description	Code	Code Description	New or Updated?	Delivered
DQCD	Deal Qualification Comparison Date	ESD	Earliest Ship Date	New	Enabled
DQCD	Deal Qualification Comparison Date	LSD	Latest Ship Date	New	Enabled
DQCD	Deal Qualification Comparison Date	NAD	Not After Date	New	Enabled
DQCD	Deal Qualification Comparison Date	NBD	Not Before Date	New	Enabled
DQCD	Deal Qualification Comparison Date	OAD	Original Approval Date	New	Enabled
SUH2	Deal Partner Types	SS	Supplier Site	New	Enabled
SUHL	Supplier Hierarchy Levels	SS	Supplier Site	New	Enabled

# DAS/RDS Updates

Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
DEAL_HEAD	DAS_WV_DEAL_HEAD	Update	Added COMPARISON_DATE column. Modified the comments on columns SUPPLIER and PARTNER_TYPE
DEAL_HEAD	RDS_WV_DEAL_HEAD	Update	Added COMPARISON_DATE column. Modified the comments on columns SUPPLIER and PARTNER_TYPE
FIXED_DEAL	DAS_WV_FIXED_DEAL	Update	Modified the comments on columns SUPPLIER and PARTNER_TYPE
FIXED_DEAL	RDS_WV_FIXED_DEAL	Update	Modified the comments on columns SUPPLIER and PARTNER_TYPE



Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
DEAL_DETAIL	DAS_WV_DEAL_DETAI L	Update	Modified the comments on columns GET_FREE_DISCOUNT
DEAL_DETAIL	RDS_WV_DEAL_DETAI L	Update	Modified the comments on columns GET_FREE_DISCOUNT

### Ability to Create Up-Charges To/From Non-Stockholding Stores

This cloud service update introduces the ability to include non-stockholding stores as 'to' and 'from' locations in the up-charge definition at the department or item level. These up-charges are also considered for book transfers and recalculate the weighted average cost (WAC) at the receiving location to reflect these costs along with relevant transaction data postings.

### Spreadsheet Based Upload for Inventory Adjustments

This cloud service update introduces the capability to create inventory adjustments by items and locations using a spreadsheet-based upload process in Merchandising. This process closely mirrors the existing screen-based inventory adjustment creation process, offering support for all relevant fields and validations. Additionally, a new field to capture user comments has also been added to the spreadsheet template, online screen and inventory adjustment ReST service.

### Privileges

Priv Name	Change Type	Priv Description	Parent Duty
MAINTAIN_INVENTOR Y_ADJUSTMENTS_VIA_ SPREADSHEET_PRIV	New	A privilege for performing inventory adjustments via spreadsheet upload.	RMS_INVENTORY_ADJ SUTMENT_VIA_SPREA DSHEET_MGMT_DUTY

#### Codes

Code Type	Code Type Description	Code	Code Description	New or Updated?	Delivered
ВТ	Induction Download Blank Template	RMSI AD	Inventory Adjustment	New	Enabled
RMST	RMS Admin API Templates	RMSI AD	Inventory Adjustment	New	Enabled



### **Privileges**

Priv Name	Change Type	Priv Description	Parent Duty
MAINTAIN_INVENTOR Y_ADJUSTMENTS_VIA_ SPREADSHEET_PRIV	New	A privilege for performing inventory adjustments via spreadsheet upload.	RMS_INVENTORY_ADJ SUTMENT_VIA_SPREA DSHEET_MGMT_DUTY

#### **Duties**

Duty Name	Change Type	Duty Description	Child Duty	Base Role
RMS_INVENTORY_ADJ SUTMENT_VIA_SPREA DSHEET_MGMT_DUT Y	New	A duty for maintaining inventory adjustments via spreadsheet upload.		RMS_APPLIC ATION_ADMI NISTRATOR_J OB,CORPORA TE_INVENTO RY_CONTRO L_ANALYST_J OB,INVENTO RY_CONTRO L_MANAGER _JOB

### DAS/RDS Updates

Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
INV_ADJ	RDS_WV_INV_ADJ	Update	Added COMMENTS column.
INV_ADJ	DAS_WV_INV_ADJ	Update	Added COMMENTS column.

### Ability to Define Shrinkage at Class and Subclass Level

This cloud service update introduces the capability of a more granular definition of shrinkage percentage at a class or subclass level. Previously, it could be defined only at the department level and modifications have been made to the Half Data Budget spreadsheet template and ReST service to allow for the optional definition at the class or subclass level. The period ending inventory calculation logic has also been enhanced to handle these definitions.

The existing system level option 'Use Budgeted Shrinkage for Ending Inventory' is being replaced with a new one 'Budgeted Shrinkage Usage Level', which allows for the setting of the level (Department, Class, Subclass, or None) at which the shrinkage percentage is desired to be maintained. For existing customers, it is set to 'Department' if the previous option to use budgeted shrinkage percentage was opted for. If previously not opted for, it is set to 'None' (blank) to maintain backward compatibility. The setting of this system parameter is an implementation time activity, and any subsequent modification is not recommended due to data implications. However, if needed in exceptional circumstances, it should be a planned exercise and must be handled through a service request to Oracle Support.



# **System Options**

Attribute Name	New or Update?	Attribute Description	Default Value
BUD_SHRINK_IND	Update	This column determines whether budgeted shrinkage will be used in the calculation of period ending inventory value in the stock ledger. If this option is set to Department (D), then shrinkage will be calculated as a percentage of sales using the budgeted shrinkage percent defined at the department level. If this option is set to Class (C), then shrinkage will be calculated as a percentage of sales using the budgeted shrinkage percent defined at the class level. If this option is set to Subclass (S),then shrinkage will be calculated as a percentage of sales using the budgeted shrinkage percent defined at the subclass level. If this value is set to No Budgeted Shrinkage (N), then actual shrinkage is calculated.	N

# Integration

API Name	Change Type	Integration Type	Field Name	Change Description
Half Data Budget ReSTful Web Service	Update	REST Service	CLASS , SUBCLASS.	Added new fields CLASS and SUBCLASS.

### Codes

Code Type	Code Type Description	Code	Code Description	New or Updated?	Delivered
BSUL	Budget Shrinkage Usage Levels	С	Class	New	Enabled
BSUL	Budget Shrinkage Usage Levels	D	Department	New	Enabled
BSUL	Budget Shrinkage Usage Levels	N	No	New	Enabled
BSUL	Budget Shrinkage Usage Levels	S	Subclass	New	Enabled



#### DAS/RDS Updates

Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
SYSTEM_OPTIONS	DAS_WV_SYSTEM_OPT NS	Update	Modified the comments for the column BUD_SHRINK_IND.
FINANCIAL_UNIT_OPT IONS	DAS_WV_FINANCIAL_ UNIT_OPTNS	Update	Modified the comments for the column BUD_SHRINK_IND.
HALF_DATA_BUDGET	DAS_WV_HALF_DATA_ BUDGET	Update	Added new columns - CLASS and SUBCLASS.
HALF_DATA_BUDGET	RDS_WV_HALF_DATA_ BUDGET	Update	Added new columns - CLASS and SUBCLASS.
SYSTEM_OPTIONS	RDS_WV_SYSTEM_OPT IONS	Update	Modified the comments for the column BUD_SHRINK_IND.
FINANCIAL_UNIT_OPT IONS	RDS_WV_FINANCIAL_ UNIT_OPTIONS	Update	Modified the comments for the column BUD_SHRINK_IND.

#### Enhanced UDA Cascade Workflow from Parent to Child Items

This cloud service update introduces enhancements to the UDA management workflow to cascade only UDAs from the parent to child items that are added or modified by the user in the same session, once the user chooses the option to cascade them in the Item UDA screen. This allows unchanged UDAs to remain unaffected and prevent any unwanted updates in the workflow.

### **Inventory Ownership Change for Transfers**

This cloud service update introduces an option to control ownership of in-transit inventory. Previously, the in-transit inventory always belonged to the destination location starting from the moment of the transfer shipment. If the new option is opted for, the ownership of in-transit inventory belongs to the source location until the transfer is received. The "shipped" inventory is part of a new bucket in the item-location Stock on Hand table. Relevant transaction data postings, total stock on hand, and stock ledger calculations are modified to account for this new inventory bucket, and the ownership change that happens at the time of transfer receipt at the destination location.



### **System Options**

Attribute Name	New or Update?	Attribute Description	Default Value
REC_WAC_UPDATE_IND	New	This system option will change the moment when the average cost is updated for the destination location in transfers. If enabled, the average cost will be updated at the time of transfer receiving.	N

# Integration

API Name	Change Type	Integration Type	Field Name	Change Description
stockCountDetail	Update	REST Service	snapshotShippe dQty	Added field snapshotShippedQty.
itemlocInvDetail	Update	REST Service	shipped_qty and pack_comp_shi pped_qty	Added shipped_qty and pack_comp_shipped_qty fields

### DAS/RDS Updates

Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
SHIPSKU	DAS_WV_SHIPSKU	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST
SHIPSKU	RDS_WV_SHIPSKU	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST
ITEM_LOC_SOH	RDS_WV_ITEM_LOC_S OH	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST
ITEM_LOC_SOH_EOD	DAS_WV_ITEM_LOC_S OH_EOD	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST
ITEM_LOC_SOH_EOD	RDS_WV_ITEM_LOC_S OH_EOD	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST
SHIPSKU_PRG_HIST	DAS_WV_SHIPSKU_PR G_HIST	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST



Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
SHIPSKU_PRG_HIST	RDS_WV_SHIPSKU_PR G_HIST	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST
INV_MOVE_UNIT_OPTI ONS	DAS_WV_INV_MOVE_U NIT_OPTNS	Update	Added new column REC_WAC_UPDATE_IN D
INV_MOVE_UNIT_OPTI ONS	RDS_WV_INV_MOVE_U NIT_OPTIONS	Update	Added new column REC_WAC_UPDATE_IN D
ITEM_LOC_SOH	DAS_WV_ITEM_LOC_S OH	Update	Added new column SOURCE_LOC_AV_COS T and RECEIPT_UNIT_COST
SYSTEM_OPTIONS	DAS_WV_SYSTEM_OPT NS	Update	Added new column REC_WAC_UPDATE_IN D
SYSTEM_OPTIONS	DAS_WV_SYSTEM_OPT IONS	Update	Added new column REC_WAC_UPDATE_IN D

### Enhanced Archive and Truncate Process for Purge History Tables

This cloud service update introduces multiple enhancements to Merchandising batch process for archiving and truncating Purge History tables. The following is the list of modifications:

- The Archive and Truncate Purge History Tables batch has been moved out of the nightly schedule and is now available as a standalone job BATCH\_ARCHIVE\_PURGE\_HIST\_ADHOC\_JOB under the process BATCH\_ARCHIVE\_PURGE\_HIST\_ADHOC\_PROCESS.
- Retention days for purge history are configurable and can be set through system
  parameters 'Purge History Retention Months' and 'Purge History Rollup Retention Months'
  with a maximum retention period of 18 months. Earlier the entire purge history was
  truncated every 180 days.
- There is now an option to delay the deletion of data from the purge history table after exporting into files. The number of days of delay can be set through a system parameter 'Purge History Deal Days' with a maximum of 7 days and a minimum of 0 days.
- The purge history tables are now interval partitioned by month. This change enables the
  retention and deletion logic to operate at the partition level. Table partitions meeting the
  purge criteria are exported as a single dump file (\*.dmp) per table. The filename format for
  the dump files is: EXPDATYYMMDDHH24MISS.dmp
- The exported dump files continue to be available in object storage under the outgoing prefix for retrieval. The exported dump files are also copied to the archive folder in persistent volume.
- The status and details of a job run can be tracked through a new table,
   ARCHIVE\_PURGE\_TRACKER. The status fields indicate where a particular table partition is in the archive and purge process.
  - New (N) New row for processing. Table partitions satisfy purge retention criteria. This
    is the first stage.



- Exported (E) Table partitions have been exported to a dump file in the database file system. This is the second stage.
- Outgoing (O) Export dump files from database file system have been moved to the outgoing prefix in object storage. This is the third stage.
- Archived (A) Export dump files have been copied to the archive folder in persistent volume. This is the fourth stage.
- Purged (P) Table partition has been dropped. This is the final stage.
- If Purge History Delay Days is set for more than 0 days, it is expected that a run completes with the to-be purged table partitions in "A" (archived) status. This means the data has been exported but needs to be purged from the purge history tables. Once the configured delay has passed, the data is purged, and status set as P" (purged). A delay of 0 days results in a final status of 'P' (purged) after execution.

#### (i) Note

#### **Important Pre-installation Note**

Prior to installing the release, it is recommended that the current BATCH\_ARCHIVE\_PURGE\_HIST\_JOB should be triggered to archive and truncate existing data on the purge history tables. By default, the process runs if 180 days or more has lapsed since LAST\_PURGE\_HIST\_ARCHIVE\_DATE on the RMS\_ARCHIVE\_DATES table. This date can be updated to fulfill the purge condition and trigger the process even when 180 day limit is not yet reached. If there is no intention to retain existing purge history, a request can be made to truncate the data in the purge history tables.

If no action is taken prior to the patch installation, **all** existing data in the purge history tables is retained and falls into a single partition having an upper bound of + 1 day. For example, if there is currently 100 days' worth of purge history, and the patch is installed on the 1st November, all 100 days are moved to a month partition with an upper bound date of 2nd November. Please note that if the "no action" route is taken, the first run of the updated batch with actual data to be purged can run long. The run time is directly proportional to the volume of existing data that was retained. As such, it is recommended to do a data cleanup prior to installation.

This enhancement aims to address following business needs:

- Frequent export and archiving to meet customer audit requirements.
- Historical data retention to assist in resolving data anomalies and discrepancies.
- Configurable data retention that can be tailored to the needs of the customer.
- Configurable delay between exporting and purging. This allows users to validate the exported files before the data is deleted from the tables.
- Lesser volume in base tables to improve overall application performance while having the purged historical data readily accessible.



# System Options

Attribute Name	New or Update?	Attribute Description	Default Value
PURGE_HIST_DELAY_D AYS	New	This field contains the number of days before an archived partition is dropped by the Archive and Truncate Purge History Tables batch. Maximum delay is 7 days.	7
PURGE_HIST_RETENTI ON_MONTHS	New	This field contains the number of months retained in the purge history tables. Records past the retention period are removed by the Archive and Truncate Purge History Tables batch. Maximum retention is 18 months.	6
PURGE_HIST_ROLLUP_ RETENTION_MONTHS	New	This field contains the number of months retained in the purge history tables specific to tables contained rolled-up data. Records past the retention period are removed by the Archive and Truncate Purge History Tables table. Maximum retention is 18 months.	12

### Batch Schedule

Process Name	Process Type	New or Updated?	Delivered
BATCH_ARCHIVE_PUR GE_HIST_PROCESS	Nightly	Removed	Enabled
BATCH_ARCHIVE_PUR GE_HIST_ADHOC_PRO CESS	Ad Hoc	New	Disabled



#### DAS/RDS Updates

Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
PURGE_CONFIG_OPTI ONS	DAS_WV_PURGE_CFG_ OPTNS	Update	Added PURGE_HIST_RETENTI ON_MONTHS, PURGE_HIST_ROLLUP_ RETENTION_MONTHS, and PURGE_HIST_DELAY_D AYS columns.
PURGE_CONFIG_OPTI ONS	RDS_WV_PURGE_CON FIG_OPTIONS	Update	Added PURGE_HIST_RETENTI ON_MONTHS, PURGE_HIST_ROLLUP_ RETENTION_MONTHS, and PURGE_HIST_DELAY_D AYS columns.
SYSTEM_OPTIONS	DAS_WV_SYSTEM_OPT NS	Update	Added PURGE_HIST_RETENTI ON_MONTHS, PURGE_HIST_ROLLUP_ RETENTION_MONTHS, and PURGE_HIST_DELAY_D AYS columns.
SYSTEM_OPTIONS	RDS_WV_SYSTEM_OPT IONS	Update	Added PURGE_HIST_RETENTI ON_MONTHS, PURGE_HIST_ROLLUP_ RETENTION_MONTHS, and PURGE_HIST_DELAY_D AYS columns.

# Enhanced Availability of Inventory Transaction Related APIs

Along with the enhancement to allow processing of inventory transactions during the nightly batch run, several ReST APIs that were previously not available during the Inventory phase of the nightly batch can now be called during all phases. This ensures 24x7 inventory processing through ReST services and thereby consistency across inventory-related operations.

Another set of APIs that were not available during both Inventory and Costing phase are now unavailable only during costing batch runs.

This enhancement has following operation impacts:

- When RIB is used, RIB Inventory Adaptors will remain 'started' throughout Merchandising nightly batch.
- RMS BATCH STATUS.INVENTORY BATCH RUNNING IND will remain 'N'.
- ReST APIs related to inventory transactions and transactions from SIOCS to MFCS through direct database integration will be processed immediately throughout Merchandising nightly batch.



# Enhanced Processing of Inventory Transactions During Nightly Batch Window

This Merchandising update introduces an enhancement to allow processing of inventory transactions during all phases of the nightly batch run. This enhancement, coupled with the availability of inventory-transactions-related ReST APIs during the nightly batch run and improved inventory update process, ensures 24x7 inventory processing in Merchandising. This includes the following modifications:

- Database Related Modifications
  - TRAN DATA A and TRAN DATA B tables are now dropped for optimization
  - TRAN DATA table is changed from a view to a physical table
  - TRAN\_DATA table is added to the SHRINK\_TABLE\_SEGMENT process in delete\_tab\_stats.ksh
- Batch Job Related Modifications
  - MAINTAIN IFTD HIST JOB: Updated to include the new Tran Data ID column.
  - salapnd.pc: Updated to include the new Tran Data ID column.
  - wasteadj.pc: Updated to perform updates (not overwrites) to
     ITEM\_LOC\_SOH.STOCK\_ON\_HAND and
     STAKE\_SKU\_LOC.SNAPSHOT\_ON\_HAND\_QTY, supporting parallel API operations.
  - prepost.pc stkxpld\_pre (new): Updated to read stake\_lockout\_days from system\_options. If stake\_lockout\_days = 0, set
     RMS\_BATCH\_STATUS.SNAPSHOT\_TAKEN\_IND to 'I' (In-progress). When stake\_lockout\_days = 0, stkxpld.pc updates STAKE\_SKU\_LOC.snapshot\_\*; Inventory APIs running concurrently may also need to update STAKE\_SKU\_LOC.snapshot\_\*.
  - prepost.pc stkupd\_pre (mod): If stake\_lockout\_days > 0, set
     RMS\_BATCH\_STATUS.SNAPSHOT\_TAKEN\_IND to 'I' (In-progress).
  - stkxpld.pc/stkupd.pc: Chunk up rows on STAKE\_SKU\_LOC that need to be updated for snapshot; lock the corresponding rows on ITEM\_LOC\_SOH to get the snapshot values; commit for each chunk.
- Flashback Query Related Modifications
  - refeodinventory.ksh Updated to use the SCN recorded by STOCKLEDGER\_SWITCHTIME\_JOB in the FLASHBACK\_SNAPSHOT\_INFO table (for process\_name = 'SCCEXT\_SALSTAGE\_REFEODINVENTORY' and business\_date = vdate) to flashback query ITEM\_LOC\_SOH when populating ITEM\_LOC\_SOH\_EOD.
  - salstage.pc Enhanced to use the SCN captured by STOCKLEDGER\_SWITCHTIME\_JOB immediately before execution to flashback query TRAN\_DATA for populating IF\_TRAN\_DATA and IF\_FUTURE\_TRAN\_DATA.
  - The same SCN will be used by refeodinventory.ksh to ensure consistency when querying ITEM\_LOC\_SOH.
  - This update ensures that both ITEM\_LOC\_SOH\_EOD and IF\_TRAN\_DATA/ IF\_FUTURE\_TRAN\_DATA include the same set of transactions, meeting RAP requirements.





The timestamp represents the End of Day for Inventory and Stock Ledger, not the End of Day for Business Date, as VDATE switching occurs later in the nightly batch.

#### Job Dependency Updates

 Jobs and Processes related to starting/stopping RIB inventory adapters are now dummy jobs. When RICS is used, RIB inventory adapters will remain up during the nightly batch.

#### Dependency Removals

- \* SALSTAGE\_JOB on OWNCHG\_PROCESS\_JOB.
- \* REFEODINVENTORY JOB on OWNCHG PROCESS JOB.

#### Dependency Additions

- \* SALSTAGE\_JOB and REFEODINVENTORY\_JOB post-dependent on STOCKLEDGER SWITCHTIME.
- \* STOCKLEDGER\_SWITCHTIME post-dependent on:
  - \* STKVAR\_PROCESS/STKVAR\_POST\_JOB
  - \* SALESPROCESS\_PROCESS/SALESUPLOADARCH\_JOB
  - \* END\_COSTING\_BATCH\_PROCESS/END\_COSTING\_BATCH\_JOB

#### **Batch Schedule**

Process Name	Process Type	New or Updated?	Delivered
STOP_RIB_ADAPTOR_I NV_PROCESS	Nightly	Update	Enabled
START_RIB_ADAPTOR_ INV_PROCESS	Nightly	Update	Enabled
STOP_RIB_ADAPTOR_I NV_24x7_PROCESS	Nightly	Update	Enabled
START_RIB_ADAPTOR_ INV_24x7_PROCESS	Nightly	Update	Enabled
RDE_STOP_RIB_ADAPT OR_INV_24x7_PROCES S	Nightly	Update	Enabled
RDE_START_RIB_ADAP TOR_INV_24x7_PROCE SS	Nightly	Update	Enabled



### DAS/RDS Updates

Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
TRAN_DATA	RDS_WV_TRAN_DATA	Update	Added CREATE_ID,CREATE_D ATETIME,LAST_UPDAT E_ID,LAST_UPDATE_D ATETIME,TARGET_CO MMIT_DATETIME,CSN _NBR,LAST_DML_TYPE and ID fields
TRAN_DATA	DAS_WV_TRAN_DATA	Update	Added CREATE_ID,CREATE_D ATETIME,LAST_UPDAT E_ID,LAST_UPDATE_D ATETIME and ID fields
IF_TRAN_DATA	DAS_WV_IF_TRAN_DA TA	Update	Added ID field
IF_FUTURE_TRAN_DAT A_HIST	DAS_WV_IF_FUTURE_T RAN_DATA_HIST	Update	Added ID field
IF_FUTURE_TRAN_DAT A	RDS_WV_IF_FUTURE_T RAN_DATA	Update	Added ID field
TRAN_DATA_HISTORY	DAS_WV_TRAN_DATA_ HISTORY	Update	Added ID field
TRAN_DATA_HISTORY	RDS_WV_TRAN_DATA_ HISTORY	Update	Added ID field
TRAN_DATA_A	DAS_WV_TRAN_DATA_ A	Update	it's dummy view now as underlying TRAN_DATA_A is drooped from RMS base
TRAN_DATA_B	RDS_WV_TRAN_DATA_ B	Update	it's dummy view now as underlying TRAN_DATA_B is drooped from RMS base
IF_TRAN_DATA	RDS_WV_IF_TRAN_DA TA	Update	Added ID field
IF_TRAN_DATA_HIST	RDS_WV_IF_TRAN_DA TA_HIST	Update	Added ID field
IF_TRAN_DATA_HIST	DAS_WV_IF_TRAN_DA TA_HIST	Update	Added ID field
IF_FUTURE_TRAN_DAT A_HIST	RDS_WV_IF_FUTURE_T RAN_DATA_HIST	Update	Added ID field
IF_FUTURE_TRAN_DAT A	DAS_WV_IF_FUTURE_T RAN_DATA	Update	Added ID field
TRAN_DATA_A	RDS_WV_TRAN_DATA_ A	Update	it's dummy view now as underlying TRAN_DATA_A is drooped from RMS base



Application Table	DAS/RDS Table or View	Change Type	Change Description
TRAN_DATA_B	DAS_WV_TRAN_DATA_ B	Update	it's dummy view now as underlying TRAN_DATA_B is drooped from RMS base

### Improved Inventory (ITEM\_LOC\_SOH table) Update Process

As part of this Merchandising update, along with the enhancement to allow processing of inventory transactions and availability of inventory-transactions-related ReST APIs during the nightly batch run, the inventory update process has also been improved to achieve 24x7 inventory processing. This includes the following modifications:

- A new 'wait and retry' mechanism on the ITEM\_LOC\_SOH table to reduce locking errors
  within the APIs updating this table. Instead of failing immediately upon contention, the
  process will wait for up to 10 seconds and attempt to acquire the lock a configurable
  number of times before failing.
- 2. The configuration is defined on the MERCH\_BATCH\_PARAM table with batch\_name 'DEFAULT\_LOCK\_RETRY', param\_key 'RETRY\_LOCK\_ATTEMPTS', and a param\_value of 3. The param\_value can be modified as needed.
- 3. Existing processes that already define their own locking parameters (for example, those in RMS\_PLSQL\_BATCH\_CONFIG and MERCH\_BATCH\_PARAMS for BATCH\_NAME = 'SALES AUDIT STORE DAY LOCK') will continue to use the existing configurations.

### Ability to Cancel Order Line with Open Shipments

With this cloud service update, there is now an option to allow line level cancellation even when there are open shipments on an order which was previously not allowed. This enhanced feature is controlled by a system level parameter, 'Skip Open Shipment for Order Line Item Cancellations', which will allow users to cancel both shipped and unshipped but unreceived units for an item on the order. This helps resolve scenarios where shipments are not expected to be received by the retailer.



### **System Options**

Attribute Name	New or Update?	Attribute Description	Default Value
SKIP_OPEN_PO_SHIPMEN T_LINE	New	Indicates whether or not the system will allow Order Line level Cancellations of open shipped quantity. Valid values are Yes (Y) or No (N), with a default value of No (N). When set to Yes (Y), user is allowed Order Line level Cancellations keeping shipment Open. This will cancel the unreceived quantity - both shipped and unshipped. When this value is No (N), system cancels only the unshipped quantity.	No

#### RFMCS – Enhanced Transfer Workflow to Account for Transfer Returns

This cloud service update introduces updates in transfer shipment and transfer receiving workflows within RFMCS to account for the transfer return scenario. With this change, the fiscal ledger in the location receiving the transfer reverts the outbound records instead of creating new inbound ones, and the fiscal ledger balance is updated, allowing the location to return the goods to the vendor and keep the fiscal ledger properly updated.

### RFMCS - Enhanced GL Cross Reference Mapping to Add Locations

This cloud service update introduces updates in the GL cross reference setup in RFMCS to include Location Type and Location as options for the mapping.

# System Requirements

This chapter covers the Client System requirements for Oracle Retail Merchandising Cloud Services.

# **Browser Requirements**



#### (i) Note

If running Windows, Oracle Retail assumes that the retailer has ensured its Operating System has been patched with all applicable Windows updates.

The following web browsers are supported:

- Mozilla Firefox
- Microsoft Edge
- Google Chrome (Desktop)

Microsoft has deprecated Internet Explorer 11 in Windows 10 and recommends using Edge as the default browser. Refer to the Oracle Software Web Browser Support Policy for additional information.

# Noteworthy Resolved Issues

For the Noteworthy Resolved Issues document for this release, see the following on My Oracle Support (MOS): Oracle Retail Merchandising Documentation Library at <a href="Doc ID: 1585843.1">Doc ID: 1585843.1</a>.

# **Deprecated Features**

As part of the continuous delivery model for Cloud Services, features and technical components of a solution may be removed or replaced to enhance the security, performance, and overall quality of the Cloud Service. When this occurs, the deprecation of a feature or component will be announced in advance, allowing customers sufficient time to anticipate the change and transition to any enhanced replacement feature/component. After the deprecation is announced, the deprecated feature or component will remain in the solution until the planned removal date and will not be enhanced or made compatible with other new features.

For the full schedule of planned deprecations for this product, see the Deprecation Advisory accessed from the following MOS Documentation Library: Oracle Retail Merchandising Cloud Services Documentation Library at Doc ID <u>1585843.1</u>.